
Audit and Risk Management Committee of the 
Board of Governors of the Guildhall School of 

Music & Drama

Date: WEDNESDAY, 11 SEPTEMBER 2019
Time: 1.45 pm
Venue: COMMITTEE ROOMS, 2ND FLOOR WEST WING, GUILDHALL

Members: Marianne Fredericks (Chairman)
Randall Anderson
John Chapman
Ann Holmes

Enquiries: Greg Moore 
tel. no.: 020 7332 1399
gregory.moore@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Lunch will be served in the Guildhall Club at 1pm
N.B. Part of this meeting may be the subject of audio or visual recording

John Barradell
Town Clerk and Chief Executive

Public Document Pack



2

AGENDA

**N.B. THE FIRST 15 MINUTES OF THIS MEETING WILL TAKE THE FORM OF AN 'IN 
CAMERA' SESSION WITH COMMITTEE MEMBERS, THE INTERNAL AUDITOR AND 

THE TOWN CLERK ONLY PRESENT**

Part 1 - Public Agenda

1. APOLOGIES

2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN RESPECT OF 
ITEMS ON THE AGENDA

3. PUBLIC MINUTES
To agree the public minutes and summary of the meeting held on 16 April 2019.

For Decision
(Pages 1 - 4)

4. INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE
Report of the Head of Internal Audit and Risk Management.

For Information
(Pages 5 - 24)

5. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE AUDIT & RISK 
MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

6. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT

7. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC
MOTION - That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public 
be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that 
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part I of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act.

Part 2 – Non-Public Agenda

8. NON-PUBLIC MINUTES
To agree the non-public minutes of the meeting held on 16 April 2019.

For Decision
(Pages 25 - 28)

9. RISK REGISTER
Report of the Principal.

For Information
(Pages 29 - 58)

10. NON-PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE 
AUDIT & RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE



3

11. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT AND 
WHICH THE SUB COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST THE 
PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED



This page is intentionally left blank



AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD OF 
GOVERNORS OF THE GUILDHALL SCHOOL OF MUSIC & DRAMA

Tuesday, 16 April 2019 

Minutes of the meeting of the Audit and Risk Management Committee of the Board 
of Governors of the Guildhall School of Music & Drama held at Committee Room 2 - 

2nd Floor West Wing, Guildhall on Tuesday, 16 April 2019 at 1.45 pm

Present

Members:
Marianne Fredericks (Chairman)
Graham Packham (Deputy Chairman)

Randall Anderson
John Chapman

Officers:
Katharine Lewis
Graeme Hood

- Guildhall School of Music and Drama
- Guildhall School of Music and Drama

Martin Newton - Town Clerk's Department
Cirla Peall - Chamberlain's Department
Jonathon Poyner - Barbican Centre
Pat Stothard - Head of Internal Audit and Risk Management
Sarah Wall - Chamberlain's Department

1. 'IN CAMERA' SESSION 
Before commencement of the public part of the meeting, the Committee held its 
usual ‘in camera’ session attended by the internal audit officers and the Town 
Clerk’s representative. 

2. APOLOGIES 
Apologies for absence were received from Neil Constable.

Apologies were also received from the Chairman and Deputy Chairman of the 
GSMD Board of Governors.  

3. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN 
RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THE AGENDA 
There were no declarations. 

4. PUBLIC MINUTES 
RESOLVED – That the public minutes of the meeting held on 12 February 
2019 be approved. 

5. PUBLIC OUTSTANDING ACTIONS 
Members considered the Town Clerk’s outstanding actions report.

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



The Head of Internal Audit and Risk Management confirmed that he was 
unaware of any progress in completion of the catering contract.

6. INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE 
The Head of Internal Audit and Risk Management provided his update report. In 
summary, Members noted that:-

 The School’s management response to the draft report on student affairs 
(support) was expected later in the week and the Board would be 
updated on outcomes, post report finalisation.

 Further audit areas were being discussed with the School on the 
academic programme development. Work on a ‘walk-through’ area was 
currently underway with further samples required to provide assurances. 

 Terms of reference for the budget-setting and financial management 
audit for quarter 1 2019/20 were being set.

 The information previously requested by Internal Audit would be 
provided by the School  in respect of the extended follow-up on the 
accommodation strategy at the earliest opportunity.

 A revised target date for recommendation implementation was in place 
for the contractual KPI monitoring with evidence to be provided by the 
end of April 2019.

 Outstanding actions had now been completed on the management of 
external health and safety inspection reports.  

 The talent management strategy implementation should be ‘signed off’ at 
the senior management team meeting on 22 May.

 A plan was in place to implement the management of school returns 
provisions by the revised target date of December 2019.

 A revised target date of N/A should be entered into the review of service 
provision update to reflect usual autumn annual reporting timescales.

 On 2019/20 strategy, it was noted that it was considered too early for a 
data futures audit taking account of national time scales for first return 
submission.  It was agreed that the audit would be rescheduled for 
2020/21.

Page 2



 The Deputy Chairman repeated his previous request for ‘more 
granularity’ in the high-level audit plan that took account of major events 
and impact on key staff to help prevent ‘back-end loading’. The Head of 
Internal Audit and Risk Management undertook to discuss this issue with 
the School and provide this information at the next meeting, including 
clarity of individuals responsible for audits.

RECEIVED.  

7. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE AUDIT & 
RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
There were no questions. 

8. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT 
There were no urgent items. 

9. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 
RESOLVED – That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, 
the public be excluded from the meeting for the remaining items of business on 
the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in Paragraph 3 of Part I of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act.

10. NON PUBLIC MINUTES 
RESOLVED – That the non-public minutes of the meeting held on 12 February 
2019 be approved. 

11. NON PUBLIC OUTSTANDING ACTIONS 
The Committee noted the Town Clerk’s report on non-public outstanding 
actions.

12. FAILURE IN HOST SCHOOL PARTNERSHIPS 
The Director of Guildhall Young Artists and Safeguarding reported on the risk 
associated with failure in host school partnerships.

13. RISK REGISTER 
The Chairman accepted for consideration the late report of the Principal on the 
School Risk Register. 

14. NON PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF 
THE AUDIT & RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
There were no questions. 

15. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT 
AND WHICH THE SUB COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED 
WHILST THE PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED 
The Chairman accepted for consideration the late report of the Senior Librarian 
updating on strengths and weaknesses around risk relating to lack of 
development of IT/digital pedagogy and infrastructure to support it. 

Two further urgent items were raised by Committee members. 

Page 3



The meeting ended at 3.40 pm

Chairman

Contact Officer: Martin Newton 
tel. no.: 020 7332 3154
martin.newton@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Page 4



 Committee: Date:
Audit and Risk Management Committee of the Board of 
Governors of the Guildhall School of Music and Drama

11 September 2019

Subject: 
Internal Audit Update Report

Public

Report of:
Head of Internal Audit and Risk Management

For Information

Summary

1. This report provides an update on audit work progressed since the April 2019 
Committee.  Delivery of the 2018-19 audit plan is nearing conclusion with 
fieldwork completed in relation to the final two audits, draft reports are expected 
to be issued in September 2019. 

2. There has been liaison between Internal Audit and School Management to agree 
the broad scope of planned audit work within 2019-20, preferred timing and the 
School’s key contacts for individual audits, facilitating good progress in delivery 
of the current year’s plan.  Following consultation with the School, there has 
been a revision to the 2019-20 Plan to reflect postponement of the Data Futures 
audit and replacement of this with the audit of Internationalisation; the updated 
three-year strategy has also been agreed with the School.

3. Following the submission to Internal Audit of implementation updates and 
evidence and recent finalisation of the Income Generation report, there are ten 
live high priority (amber) recommendations related to the School as at mid-
August 2019.

Recommendation(s)

Members are asked to note the status of planned audit work for 2018-19 
and 2019-20, the live high priority recommendations position as at mid-
August 2019 and the updated three-year audit strategy. 

Main Report

Background

4. This report provides an update on Internal Audit activity undertaken at the School 
since the last report to the April 2019 Committee meeting, the delivery status of 
the 2018-19 and 2019-20 audit plans and the live high priority recommendations 
position.  

Delivery of Internal Audit Work

5. Delivery of 2018-19 planned audits is nearing completion and the plan status is 
outlined at Appendix 1.  

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



6. The Strategic Planning and Income Generation audits have been finalised since 
the last update report to this Committee, audit fieldwork has been completed in 
respect of the Accommodation Strategy extended follow-up and the Academic 
Programme Development audit has been progressed in line with the terms of 
reference which have been finalised since the April Committee meeting. 

7. Audit work completed since the April Committee is summarised below:

Strategic Planning (Moderate Assurance)

Recommendations Red Amber Green Total
Number Made 0 2 2 4
Number Accepted 0 2 2 4

8. Audit testing determined that the Guildhall School (the School) has developed a 
sound framework for strategic planning to enable the identification of long-term 
objectives and prioritisation of activities to achieve these. The internal planning 
process incorporated stakeholder and SMT input, Board oversight, and final sign-
off. Additionally, responsibilities have been assigned to Senior Officers and Board 
Sponsors to drive forward each Strategic Objective. 

9. Audit testing confirmed that the School has developed a set of SMART objectives 
and related KPIs to facilitate evaluation of Strategic Plan delivery; these are 
contained in the School’s Business Plan. An amber priority recommendation has 
been made to strengthen the audit trail of Strategic Plan and associated Business 
Plan developments. 

10.The School has established arrangements for monitoring implementation of the 
Strategic Plan through various forums; audit testing confirmed that the Strategic 
Planning Group (SPG) is a monthly forum which focuses on one Strategic 
Objective at a time, and Board oversight is ensured through the Principal’s 
general reports to the Board. SPG meeting minutes are maintained but audit 
testing has identified scope to further strengthen control in this area and an 
amber priority recommendation has been raised. 

11.A matrix has been compiled which draws together all of the projects under the 
various Strategic Objectives and sets out some key information to facilitate 
monitoring, although this document does not reflect the status / progress of 
delivery. An amber priority recommendation has been made to enhance this 
record to facilitate tracking by including details of: current position/progress made 
against individual projects, the Officer responsible for agreed actions, and 
timescales against which actions can be monitored. 

12.Audit examination of Board papers and SPG minutes indicated determined that 
mechanisms have been put into place for reviewing and updating the Strategic 
Plan to ensure that it remains relevant and up to date. 

13.All audit recommendations were agreed by Management for implementation by 
the end of September 2019, one has already been confirmed as implemented 
and the remainder are understood to be on target.  

Page 6



Income Generation (Moderate Assurance)

Recommendations Red Amber Green Total
Number Made 0 3 0 3
Number Accepted 0 3 0 3

14.The School has defined strategies for income maximisation related to Funding 
Council Grants, Academic Fees, Research Grants, and other income such as that 
from residences and catering operations.  

15.The School has assessed the impact of the change in funder to the Office for 
Students and recognises that widening participation and optimising student 
experiences are key areas of focus, as well as maximising student numbers; a 
Strategy Group has been introduced to develop a ‘widening participation 
strategy’, and student satisfaction is part of a KPI which is subject to tracking.

16.Academic fees and education contracts generate the highest proportion of 
income and the School's Business Plan reflects the drive to increase the student 
number and student number targets have been defined. A student intake and 
overall population plan for the next five years has been developed to help achieve 
the student number targets. Additionally, a ‘Brexit mitigation strategy’ has been 
developed to manage the potential impact on the Music Department of a 
reduction in student numbers, and other aspects of operations such as recruiting 
and training staff.  

17.The School’s Business Plan sets out the GSMD’s aspirational targets in respect 
of research grants. A new strategy for Guildhall Innovation was developed in 
November 2018 and this strategy outlines the key aims, objectives and flagship 
work of the department, for both internal stakeholders and key external partners 
and funders, including Research England and the OfS.

18.The newly formed Advancement Department results from the merging of the 
separate teams for Development, Alumni Relations and Marketing & 
Communications, under the leadership of the recently appointed Vice Principal 
and Director of Advancement. The aims for the department over the next five 
years have been defined and include the following objectives related to 
fundraising:

 Develop and implement a comprehensive fundraising strategy linked to key 
institutional priorities, together with a compelling case for support; and

 Increase the quantity of gifts in each donor category by employing innovative 
fundraising practices and policies.

19.No audit recommendations have been made in respect of strategy development 
or plans to seek opportunities for new income sources and to expand current 
income streams.  Three amber priority recommendations have been made to 
strengthen control over income performance monitoring through the following:

 Tracking of deviations from the five-year financial projections from the 
Business Plan;

Page 7



 Definition of base line performance and targets for the performance measures 
in Indicator Tracking.  

 Maintenance of budget monitoring discussion records to reflect budget 
variance and revised forecast explanations, evidence of appropriate challenge 
and agreed action points.

20.Audit sample testing confirmed that student tuition fee debts are monitored 
regularly, and recovery actions taken as required. Termly reconciliation of tuition 
fee income between SITS and the balance sheet is undertaken independently of 
income collection, recording and recovery. 

21.All recommendations were agreed by Management with one target date of July 
2019 and two target dates of September 2019.  Internal Audit has since been 
advised by the School that all of the recommendations will be implemented by 
September 2019, and a revised target date has been set accordingly for one of 
the recommendations.

Academic Programme Development (previously ‘Enhanced Student Offer’)

22.This audit has examined the framework for: evaluating and defining the student 
programme offer, highlighting opportunities for improvement, and the 
arrangements for delivery and monitoring.  The audit has focused on the following 
arrangements:

 The framework in operation which enables the evaluation of the current 
student programme offer -   identification of potential new courses and 
elimination of existing ones where low enrolment is identified – ensuring it 
remains relevant and in line with the School’s Strategic vision and objectives.

 Stakeholder engagement in Programme formulation and arrangements for 
communicating changes.

 Processes for developing new courses, including evaluation of financial 
viability.

 Performance monitoring to evaluate whether delivery outcomes are as 
intended

 Periodic review / benchmarking of service provision

23.As agreed with the School, audit fieldwork has been carried out in two phases to 
align with the availability of key School staff.  The first phase of audit has focused 
on a ‘process walkthrough’ to confirm the processes operated in respect of the 
‘BA in Video Design for Live Performance‘, put forward by the School as a recent 
example of a new course.  The second phase of audit, undertaken as part of 
2019-20 audit plan, is focused on a further sample of courses.  Audit fieldwork 
has been completed in respect of both phases and the outcome will be reported 
to this Committee upon finalisation. 

Accommodation Strategy – Extended Follow-Up

24.Audit fieldwork has been completed in respect of this extended follow-up exercise 
and the audit report is being drafted.  Internal Audit has examined the supporting 
documentation related to development of the Strategy to confirm that this reflects:

Page 8



 The provision of data, for example related to utilisation, in respect of the 
existing estate

 An evaluation of performance of the existing estate
 Identification of challenges and opportunities arising from the existing estate
 Identification and evaluation of options for addressing challenges and 

opportunities
 Plans for implementation of the preferred options

2019-20 Audit Plan Delivery

25. Internal Audit has liaised with the School’s management to agree the broad 
scope, timing and audit sponsors / key contacts for 2019-20 planned audits and 
delivery is underway, as outlined in Appendix 2.  Plan delivery progress since the 
April Committee meeting is good, as set out below.

 The terms of reference for the audits of Production Arts Students’ Cash 
Floats, Budget-Setting and Financial Management, and Fraud Risk 
Management have been finalised.

 Audit fieldwork has been completed in respect of both the Budget-Setting and 
Financial Management, and Fraud Risk Management audits, and the draft 
reports prepared.  

 The fieldwork has been completed in respect of the Cash Floats audit, an exit 
meeting has been held with the key contact to discuss the audit findings and 
proposed recommendations, and the draft report has been circulated for 
comment. 

26. Internal Audit will liaise with the nominated key contacts for the two audits not 
initiated – Facilities Management and Maintenance, and Internationalisation - to 
inform detailed assigning planning and agreement of the terms of reference.  
There is a strong focus by Internal Audit and the School to ensure a relatively 
even profile of audit delivery across the Plan year and we are on track to ensure 
completion of all audits by year-end. 

Three Year Internal Audit Strategy 2019-2022

27.The statement of intent for the years 2019-22, is set out in Appendix 3.  Since 
the April Committee meeting, several revisions to the three-year strategy have 
been agreed in consultation with the School:

 The audit of Data Futures has been rescheduled to 2020-21, in recognition of 
the delay in detailed roll-out of the scheme by the Office for Students.  

 The audit of Internationalisation has been brought forward from 2020-21 to 
2019-20 to replace the Data Futures audit.

 An audit of Governance has been included within the 2020-21 Plan.

Page 9



Implementation of Audit Recommendations

28. In preparing for the School’s Informal Risk Challenge session for the City’s Audit 
and Risk Management Committee in July 2019 - which included consideration of 
the live high priority recommendations position - the School provided numerous 
status updates and implementation evidence to Internal Audit which has 
significantly improved the position since the last update to this Committee.  There 
has been additional movement as further updates and implementation evidence 
have been received since that time enabling the closure of recommendations and 
finalisation of the Income Generation report has resulted in three amber priority 
recommendations being raised.

29.  As at mid-August 2019 there are ten live amber priority recommendations 
compared to seventeen (two red, fifteen amber) at the time of the April Committee 
meeting.  Appendix 4 provides a breakdown of live recommendation details and 
reflects that:

 Three of the recommendations are overdue and revised target implementation 
timescales have been supplied for these.

 Seven of the recommendations are not yet due, according to previously 
agreed timescales, and the School has advised that all are progressing in line 
with these target dates.

30.There are three recommendations where there has been slippage in 
implementation since the April meeting of this Committee, as set out below:

Audit Area Amber 
Priority

Student Affairs Recording of Budget Monitoring Outcomes 1
Student Affairs Service Provision Objective-Setting 1
Income Generation Budget Monitoring Records 1

TOTAL 3

31. Internal Audit will continue to liaise with all recommendation owners to determine 
the progress in implementation of outstanding issues, closing down the 
recommendations upon receipt of appropriate evidence.

Conclusion

32.Delivery of the 2018-19 Audit Plan is now nearing completion with the two 
remaining audits soon to be finalised. 

33.Delivery of the 2019-20 Audit Plan is progressing well, as per the timing agreed 
with the School and is on track to ensure delivery of all audits by the end of the 
Plan year.

34.The three-year Internal Audit strategy has been agreed with the School.

Page 10



35.As at mid-August 2019, there are ten live amber priority recommendations which 
include three that arose from the recently finalised Income Generation audit; this 
position represents a significant improvement since the April Committee meeting.  

Appendices

Appendix 1 Internal Audit Plan Status 2018-19
Appendix 2 Internal Audit Plan Status 2019-20
Appendix 3 Internal Audit Plan 2019-20 and proposed audit coverage for 2020-2022
Appendix 4 Live Amber Priority Recommendations – mid-August 2019

Cirla Peall, Audit Manager
E: cirla.peall@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Matt Lock, Head of Audit and Risk Management
E: Matt.Lock@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 12



Appendix 1

Guildhall School Internal Audit Plan Delivery 2018-19 

Recommendations
Project Status Assurance

Rating
Total 
Red

Total 
Amber

Total 
Green

Total

Student Affairs (Student Support)

Deferred from 2017-18 in agreement with School management, this 
audit focused on examination of the arrangements in operation within 
Student Affairs for the following:

 Clear aims of service provision, linked to strategic goals, and 
measurable objectives 

 Performance monitoring to evaluate whether delivery outcomes are 
as intended 

 Management of any services provided under contract to ensure that 
specifications are met 

 Financial management – controls over payments to ensure that 
these are in line with contract / on the basis of goods or services 
received and monitoring to ensure that expenditure is in line with 
budget 

 Periodic review / benchmarking of service provision and 
consideration of alternative delivery models, where appropriate 

Complete Moderate 0 10 0 10

Strategic Planning

An examination of the Guildhall School’s strategic planning framework, 
including arrangements for stakeholder input, development of SMART 
objectives and related KPIs, delivery monitoring and on-going review.  
Audit testing sought to confirm operation of the following:

Complete Moderate 0 2 2 4

P
age 13



Recommendations
Project Status Assurance

Rating
Total 
Red

Total 
Amber

Total 
Green

Total

 A strategic planning framework in operation which enables 
identification of long-term objectives and prioritisation of activities to 
achieve these; 

 Stakeholder engagement in Plan formulation and arrangements for 
communication of Plan developments, to promote buy-in; 

 Development of SMART objectives and related KPIs to facilitate 
evaluation of Plan delivery; 

 Monitoring implementation of the Strategic Plan through appropriate 
forums; and 

 Mechanisms for review and update of the Strategic Plan to ensure it 
remains relevant and up to date. 

Income Generation

Maximising income from grant funding, student fees and other income 
is a priority for the School and this audit looked at the arrangements in 
place to seek opportunities to maximise income, secure sustainable 
sources of income and fully receive the income due.  Audit testing 
focused on arrangements in operation for the following:

 There is a defined strategy in place which sets out how the GSMD 
is to maximise its income.

 The income strategy in use supports the organisational ethos and is 
in accordance with the risk appetite.

 There are plans in place to seek opportunities for new income 
sources and to expand current income streams.

Complete Moderate 0 3 0 3

P
age 14



Recommendations
Project Status Assurance

Rating
Total 
Red

Total 
Amber

Total 
Green

Total

 The School’s capacity and resource utilisation are reviewed 
regularly to identify opportunities for new income generating 
activities.

 Professional advice is sought and acted upon to ensure that the 
School fully utilises financial support and incentives available as an 
Office for Student (OfS) registered provider.

Academic Programme Development (Phase 1)

This is the first part of an audit looking at the framework for evaluating 
and defining the student programme offer, highlighting opportunities for 
improvement and the arrangements for delivery and monitoring.  This 
initial phase is focused on a ‘process walkthrough’ related to the ‘BA in 
Video Design for Live Performance’ to determine the controls in 
operation, ahead of the second phase of audit in 2019-20 which will 
examine a wider sample of programmes.

Fieldwork 
Complete

- - - - -

Accommodation Strategy

Extended follow-up of the recommendation from the Sundial Court 
Project Governance audit that the School should develop a formal 
strategy to inform decision-making regarding the long-term 
accommodation needs of the School.  Audit testing has focused on the 
approach adopted for strategy development and confirmation that it has 
incorporated the following:

 The provision of data, for example related to utilisation, in respect of 
the existing estate

Fieldwork 
Complete

- - - - -

P
age 15



Recommendations
Project Status Assurance

Rating
Total 
Red

Total 
Amber

Total 
Green

Total

 An evaluation of performance of the existing estate
 Identification of challenges and opportunities arising from the 

existing estate
 Identification and evaluation of options for addressing challenges 

and opportunities
 Plans for implementation of the preferred options

P
age 16



Appendix 2

Guildhall School Internal Audit Plan Delivery 2019-20

Project & Broad Scope Timing Audit 
Days

Status Audit Sponsor 

Budget-Setting & Financial Management 

An examination of both financial management (processes, 
procedures and controls) and longer-term strategic financial 
planning (approach, systems, capabilities) in / for the School.

Q1 15 Fieldwork 
Complete

Graeme Hood, Group Accountant

Academic Programme Development (Phase 2)

This the second part of an audit looking at the framework for 
evaluating and defining the student programme offer, 
highlighting opportunities for improvement and the 
arrangements for delivery and monitoring.  The initial phase of 
audit, focused on a ‘process walkthrough’ related to the BA in 
Video Design for Live Performance, and was undertaken in 
March 2019. The second phase of audit is focused on a 
further sample of three courses to inform the audit assurance 
opinion.

Q1-2 15 
(Overall)

Fieldwork 
Complete

Katharine Lewis, Secretary & Dean 
of Students

Fraud Risk Management

An examination of fraud risk management arrangements in 
operation in respect of the Guildhall School, focusing on areas 
subject to a high risk of fraud- for example procurement of 
supplies and services below £10k in value, cash income 
collection, equipment management, and declarations of 
interest / gifts and hospitality.

Q2 12 Fieldwork 
Complete 

Jeremy Newton, Vice-Principal & 
Director of Advancement

P
age 17



Project & Broad Scope Timing Audit 
Days

Status Audit Sponsor 

Production Arts Students Cash Floats

To obtain assurance that there are adequate arrangements in 
place to ensure that Production Arts Students’ petty cash 
funds are appropriately managed and only used for valid 
purposes. The audit will also look to ensure that appropriate 
arrangements are in place for recording petty cash 
expenditure within the Guildhall School’s Finance System, 
Oracle R12.

Q2 5 Draft 
Report 

Prepared

Graeme Hood, Group Accountant

Facilities Management & Maintenance 

An examination of the Facilities Management arrangements, 
including structures, contracts and policies, and the 
maintenance arrangements to ensure that we provide suitable 
facilities that are safe, compliant and well-managed.

Q3 12 Not 
Initiated

Jonathon Poyner, Operations & 
Buildings Director

Internationalisation – Scope to be determined. Q4 TBC Not 
Initiated

Jeremy Newton, Vice-Principal & 
Director of Advancement

P
age 18



APPENDIX 3

Guildhall School - Draft Internal Audit 3 Year Strategy 2019 - 2022

Audit Title 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22

Budget-Setting & Financial Management 
Facilities Management & Maintenance (Barbican & 
Guildhall School)



Internationalisation 
Fraud Risk Management 
Production Arts Students - Cash Floats 
Governance 
Diversifying Funding / Fundraising 
Data Futures 
Under 18s Offer 
Health & Safety 
Guildhall School & Barbican Alliance 
GDPR 
IT – Digital &Technology 
Capital Expenditure & Procurement 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 20



Appendix 4

Guildhall School – Live High Priority Recommendations as at mid-August 2019

Audit Area & Outstanding Action Original 
Target Date

Latest 
Revised
Target 
Date

Recommendation 
Owner

Status Progress Comments

Satellite Sites

Collaboration Agreements: Development of full 
formal collaboration agreements (MoUs) with 
partnership satellite sites.

Oct 2017 Sept 2019 Nikki Shepperd,
Head of GYA 
Regional Centres

Partially 
Implemented

Sign-off of the agreement in respect 
of Saffron Walden was achieved in 
August 2019. 
 
Taunton – This has taken longer 
due to the relationship with the host 
School. Sign-off on target for 
September 2019. 

Student Affairs

Budget Monitoring Records: Key budget 
monitoring outcomes and agreed actions to be 
recorded and circulated to facilitate tracking.

Feb 2019 Sept 2019 Sarah Wall, Group 
Accountant and 
Sarah Port, Senior 
Management 
Accountant.

Not 
Implemented

Implementation timescale 
revised from June to Sept 2019.

Review of Service Provision: Annual reporting to 
clearly articulate any reviews of service 
provision and development of an action plan to 
highlight the forward planning of any such 
reviews.

Sept 2019 - Sue Cowan, Head of 
Student Affairs

Not 
Implemented

The School has advised that 
implementation is on target.

Service Provision Planning: Student Affairs 
annual report to reference the link to the 
School’s strategic objectives.

Sept 2019 - Sue Cowan, Head of 
Student Affairs

Not 
Implemented

The School has advised that 
implementation is on target.

P
age 21



Appendix 4

Audit Area & Outstanding Action Original 
Target Date

Latest 
Revised
Target 
Date

Recommendation 
Owner

Status Progress Comments

Consistency of Reporting: Annual service 
reporting to include outcomes against relevant 
aims / objectives set at the start of the year. 

Feb 2019 Dec 2019 Sue Cowan, Head of 
Student Affairs

Partially 
Implemented

The School has advised that 
implementation is on target.

Performance Monitoring: Future plans / goals 
identified in the Student Affairs annual reports to 
be translated into an action plan with target 
dates and responsible officers identified, to 
facilitate monitoring.

Sept 2019 - Sue Cowan, Head of 
Student Affairs

Not 
Implemented

The School has advised that 
implementation is on target.

Service Provision Objective-Setting: Evaluation 
of the School’s arrangements for objective-
setting related to student support services 
against the approach taken by other Higher 
Education Institutions.

April 2019
& when 
benchmarking 
data becomes 
available

Oct 2019 Sue Cowan, Head of 
Student Affairs

Not 
Implemented

Implementation timescale 
revised from June to Sept 2019.

Management comment: OfS has 
not yet issued a technical 
specification for student data for the 
Prevent Return but the Student 
Affairs Department will be 
implementing from the start of 
2019/20 academic year, revised 
reporting procedures for service 
user interactions so that there is 
improved service user data from the 
start of 2019/20.

Income Generation

Budget Monitoring Records: Records to include 
the budget holder’s explanations of budget 
variances, forecasts, key assumptions on the 
forecasts, and explanations for forecast 
changes, evidence of challenge and action 
points with deadlines.

July 2019 Sept 2019 Graeme Hood, 
Group Accountant

Not 
Implemented

Implementation timescale 
revised from June to Sept 2019.

P
age 22



Appendix 4

Audit Area & Outstanding Action Original 
Target Date

Latest 
Revised
Target 
Date

Recommendation 
Owner

Status Progress Comments

Financial Projection Deviations: Reporting on 
any deviations from the Business Plan to be 
added to the Management Information 
Dashboard.

Sept 2019 - Graeme Hood, 
Group Accountant

Not 
Implemented

The School has advised that 
implementation is on target.

Baseline Performance & Targets: Baseline for 
the performance indicators, based on 2018-19 
actuals, to be added to the Management 
Information Dashboard. 

Sept 2019 - Graeme Hood, 
Group Accountant

Not 
Implemented

The School has advised that 
implementation is on target.

In summary:

 There are ten live high priority recommendations as at mid-August 2019.
 Two recommendations have been partially implemented and eight recommendations have not been implemented.
 There has been implementation slippage since the April 2019 Committee meeting in respect of three recommendations and revised target dates have 

been supplied. 

P
age 23



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 24



Document is Restricted

Page 25

Agenda Item 8
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 29

Agenda Item 9
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 35

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Public Minutes
	4 Internal Audit Update
	Appendix 1 Sept 2019 Schedule of 2018_19 Audit Work_for submission
	Appendix 2 Sept 2019 Schedule of 2019_20 Audit Work_for submission
	GSMD Draft Audit 3 Year Strategy Appendix 3 Sept 2019 for submission
	Appendix 4 Sept 2019 Live High Priority Recommendations_for submission

	8 Non Public Minutes
	9 Risk Register
	Risk Register appendix


